
 

 

                                       URBANA CITY COUNCIL 

                        REGULAR SESSION MINUTES - MAY 14, 2013 
The Urbana City Council Regular Session Meeting of Tuesday, May 14, 2013 was called 

to order by Council President Marty Hess, at 7:02PM, in Court Chambers / The 

Municipal Building. 

Attendance: All Council Members were present with the exception of Mr. Robert Thorpe. 

City Staff – Please refer to May 14, 2013 Work Session attendance/See File 

Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayoral Proclamation  (Cancelled) 

Brief Presentation by DP&L  (Postponed to May 28, 2013 UCC Regular Session) 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Al Evans moved to approve the UCC Regular Session & Work Session Minutes of 

April 23, 2013; Mr. Eugene Fields seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Communications 

Mr. Larry Lokai moved to place the 2012 Annual Report of the Urbana Fire Division on 

file; Mr. Fields seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Mr. Dwight Paul moved to place the correspondence (May 3, 2013) from the Champaign 

County Farm Bureau – upcoming Policy Development Meeting invitation on file; Mr. 

Lokai seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Mr. Paul moved to place the correspondence (May 7, 2013) from the Auditor of State, 

Mr. Dave Yost, regarding ‘Accuracy in Financial Reporting’ on file; Mr. Lokai seconded. 

Motion carried without objection. 

Administrative Reports – Board of Control 

1. Mr. Lokai moved to authorize a purchase order to Cherokee Run Landfill in the 

amount of $15,000 to cover the cost of landfill containers at the Waste Water 

Treatment Plant (These containers are necessary to handle additional industrial 

volume / This expense will be charged to the Waste Water Treatment Division, 

and is not in the 2013 Budget); Mr. Paul seconded. Motion carried without 

objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Chad Hall stated: 

“We experienced (over the last 2-3 months) an excessive high solids loading in 

our in-flow…from 1 particular industrial flow…basically, we got to the point of  

no liquid sludge storage capacity...” 

He noted sludge production was ‘running almost 24 hours a day.’ 

“To give you a little bit of comparison (heads up)—as of today, we have finished 

with landfill containers…I certainly hope we don’t see too many more of 

those…at the end of 2012, we used a total of 29 containers…so far in 2013, we’re 

at 31…” said Mr. Hall. “We do have 1 very small violation (during this time 

period)—we exceeded our ammonia limits by a…one time was a half of a 

milligram per liter…the other one was 2 milligrams per liter.” 

He noted the situation as ‘corrected.’ 

Mr. Al Evans asked, “Has the situation that caused the additional volume of 

sludge, that kind of sparks the need for these containers…has that been 

corrected?” 



 

 

Mr. Hall replied, “They’re in the process of correcting…production is off this 

week…they’re very adamant to get the problem fixed…” 

Mr. Paul asked, “Did you say that you’re out of capacity of these containers 

now?” 

Mr. Hall indicated it involves the liquid (storage side), and not the container side. 

“Do we have a surcharge for something like that, and add a little more…because 

we’re having to absorb a little more cost…is there help to pick up a little of that 

cost?” asked Mr. Lokai. 

Mr. Hall noted a line item (in the Pretreatment Program) that adds reoccurring 

cost, and he said there is also a surcharge program. 

Mr. Doug Hoffman asked, “…and then to clarify…this is a…it’s not in the 

Budget…were any surcharges that we would receive from the violation even 

come close to covering it? These costs?” 

“I think it’s too early to say,” replied Mr. Hall. 

“So…Lee…how are we as far as covering this? Are we still…?” asked Mr. 

Hoffman. 

Mr. Lee Williams answered, “Well, that’s why it’s not in Budget…because right 

now the revenue stream isn’t there that compensates for the cost.”  

“But it will probably offset…somewhat,” said Mr. Hoffman. 

“Hopefully, it will stop,” replied Mr. Williams. 

     2 .   Mr. Fields moved to authorize a purchase order to EJ Prescott in the amount of  

            $30,000 to cover the cost of water system parts (This expense will be charged to  

            Water Division, and is in the 2013 Budget); Mr. Lokai seconded. Motion carried  

            without objection. 

            Discussion – 

            Mr. Robert Munch said: 

            “This p.o. is (more or less) just to replace inventory from…inventory that was  

            used on the last several digs that we had (February, March, & April).” 

            “Do you expect to come back later in the year?” asked Mr. Paul. 

            “Yes,” said Mr. Munch. 

            “Do you expect to exceed this $30,000?” asked Mr. Paul. 

            Mr. Munch replied, “Yes—unless we have a really good Summer and Winter… 

            and nothing happens.” 

3. Mr. Paul moved to authorize a purchase order to Reliant Mechanical, Inc. in the 

amount of $15,864. for the replacement of RTU#8 and RTU#9 at the Municipal 

Building (These units are located on the older portion of the building. Both re- 

placement units are eligible for a DP&L rebate of $450. per unit. This expense 

will be charged to Administration-Capital, and is in the 2013 Budget); Mr. Hoff- 

man seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Doug Crabill explained: 

“These 2 units (#8 & 9) as it mentions are in the older part of the building actually 

above the Administration Office…I believe there is 4 units that are cooling 

only…that provide cooling to the upper levels of the old building. These units 

have been on the list for a couple years. We’ve had other units that are actually  



 

 

newer than these units (that have had issues sooner), so those have been taken 

care of in previous years…so this year (we’ve had a little bit of trouble in the past 

with these 2—with reliability and cooling during the Summer) and the 

compressors are going out (on at least 1 of them). They sit like side-by-side and 

work in parallel…so…it makes sense to replace both of them…but again, they’re 

cooling only…they’re eligible for DP&L rebates…” 

He pointed to upgrade of the electrical disconnects (at least 20+ years old). 

Council President Hess asked, “More energy efficient too?” 

Mr. Crabill confirmed energy efficiency and savings. 

4. Mr. Paul moved to authorize the Director of Administration to approve Change 

Order #1 for the Berwick Dr. Storm Project in the amount of $14,197.80 per the 

recommendation of the City Engineer (Change Order #1 will allow a small storm 

water project on Community Drive to be added to the contract for the Berwick Dr. 

Storm Project. The Engineer’s original estimate for this work was $14,000. This 

Expense will be charged to the Capital Improvement Fund, and is in the 2013 

Budget); Mrs. Smith seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Crabill said: 

“As you know we got started on the Berwick Dr. Storm Project (they’ve been 

working on it about a month, or a week and a half…2 weeks…something like 

that)—when we put that project out for bid, we anticipated possibly picking up 

this project…but we wanted to get that one under…see what it came in, as far as 

bids, and get it started…and then look at this one…but this is another part of 

dealing with the storm water issues along 36. There’s actually 3 parts to that—if 

you remember, there’s Berwick, there’s Community Drive, and there’s a storm 

line that will connect back to the gravel pit that was purchased…so this was just 1 

part of that, and (we thought) since we already the existing contract in place…and 

the contractor a block away, it just makes sense to add this small amount to get 

this work out of the way this year.” 

“So this is an additional?” asked Mr. Evans. 

“Yeah—it’s an add on to the existing contract,” Mr. Crabill answered. 

“So by doing this, are we pushing up this other section of the project by (what) a 

year?” asked Mr. Paul. 

Mr. Crabill said, “What we would’ve done (if this had waited until next year)—

this project would’ve been in next year’s budget…and the one to connect back to 

the gravel pit would’ve been in next year’s budget…so we’re just trying to get it 

taken care of this year, so all we have to do next year is that other one.” 

“Prior to your explanation, I had some reservations about this…but I think your 

explanation kind of squelched that,” stated Mr. Lokai. “I guess my concern is—

okay now you’ve got a change order (which I can understand your position)—do 

you think there are going to be any more change orders? This is the thing that 

really irritates me (a little bit), and I think other people…that we get a quote in (or 

bid), and the next thing we get another change order…” 

Mr. Crabill interjected, “This isn’t a change order in the sense that the plans were 

wrong. This is a change order in the sense that we’re adding additional work, 



 

 

while we’ve already got a bond…and we’ve already got insurance, and 

mobilization…and all those costs (basically already built into the other contract), 

so this is probably more efficient. Again—if there was something that was a mis- 

take in the plan, then I understand your concern…but this one is just essentially 

just allowing us to increase the contract to add the additional work.” 

Mr. Lokai said, “No set up fee basically…” 

“I think that’s…I’d have to see the line item…there’s some of those in there, but 

ultimately it has to be more efficient…for a small job like this to tack it into 

another one,” Mr. Crabill replied. 

            Mr. Hoffman said, “I would encourage any time we have an opportunity to add on 

            a job (if the money’s in the budget) even if we have to move it up a little bit…I’m 

            fine…thanks for the explanation.” 

5. Mr. Paul moved to authorize the Director of Administration to enter into an agree- 

ment with RW Armstrong for design and construction administration/ observation 

at Grimes Field for rehabilitation work on the runway in the amount of $26,000. 

per the proposal dated May 2, 2013. (This expense will be charged to the FAA 

AIP 1812 grant and the Airport Capital Improvement Fund, and is in the 2013 

Budget. The FAA AIP 1812 grant will fund 90% of this cost); Mrs. Smith 

seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Crabill explained: 

“In our Airport Grant (1812), our main construction project is to do some rehab 

work on the runway…if you remember we did a lot of pavement work up there 

last year in the Fall…this will address the runway. Basically, what the plan is—is 

to do crack sealing, like seal coating, and then restripe the whole runway (it’s 

never been restriped since it was built). In order to do that, we need to have 

construction documents in place that meet the FAA guidelines, so this basically 

would be to design the improvements…and to oversee the work. The work will 

have to be bid this Summer. This is just to do the design work, and later on 

administer the project…so this is their full fee for this particular project.” 

Mr. Evans asked,” Is this…I know we’re trying to do that out there in steps…does 

this complete the project that we began?” 

Mr. Crabill answered, “Yeah—this one um…this was one we kind of realized 

when we were doing the other one, that we should try to do this project…and so 

when we coming up with our grant last year that’s what we decided to do. This is 

just to design and administer a new project. We will have to bid the construction.” 

“So this is just the design?” Mr. Evans sought to verify. 

“Yeah—I want to say (if I remember right) we’re looking at like $80,000 or 

$90,000 for the work itself,” said Mr. Crabill. 

“But that will also be in…?” asked Mr. Evans. 

“It’s part of the grant,” Mr. Crabill said.  

“…and our share will be?” asked Mr. Evans. 

“10%,” answered Mr. Crabill. “The construction will come back to you this 

Summer—we’re looking at like August (time frame) for the work itself.” 

Mr. Lokai said, “Anybody that’s paying attention to what’s going on at the 

Airport realizes that we kind of have a diamond in the rough there. Anything we 



 

 

can do to continue to grow with these activities, and move forward…and it’s 

going to only mean better things for Urbana…so thanks for your vision, and 

position on these things.” 

6. Mr. Evans moved to authorize the Director of Administration to enter into a  

construction contract with Dugan & Meyers Construction Company in the 

amount of $19,959,516. for the Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrade (This 

will be financed by a loan pending approval by DEFA. Loan repayments are 

planned to start in January 2016 based on the proposed project schedule –  

Council was asked to see the attached summary); Mr. Lokai seconded. Motion 

carried without objection – (6-0) vote. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Chad Hall said: 

“First of all I do want to thank Council for their time last week—for coming out, 

and spending some time at the Plant…asking a lot of good questions, and just 

showing their interest in this project. 

As most of you are aware—by upgrading the Waste Water Treatment Plant, this 

addresses the concerns of capacity…and nutrient removal that’s coming towards 

us here in the next couple years from the state…nutrient is a little more basic, it 

will be a phosphorus removal (is one of the biggest ones)…and the critical need 

for failing equipment that we’re currently operating. 

CDM Smith designed the project, and prepared 11 different bid packets that went 

out to general contractors…we received 8 bids back in. Dugan & Meyers is the 

low bidder. 

I think that probably from there—we all know where our concerns are, where the 

issues are…with the Weidmann Industrial flow that the city received last year (the 

major industry here in town), we feel that at this point…if we were gracious 

enough to receive another large industry (move to Urbana) we would not be able 

to serve them at the Waste Water Plant. That’s a major concern (I know) to all of 

you…when we do look at income tax, or just jobs period…right here in our local 

community.  

The $19mil does compare to a lot of other facilities around the state. You had in 

your Board of Control summary…about 9 or 10 different (other) plants across the 

state, and Urbana was the 3
rd

 lowest out of that group. We came in at $4.67 a 

gallon—as we spoke earlier, the national average is $5.-$6. a gallon. We tried to 

use some good comparisons—not going out and taking oranges against apples—a 

lot of those facilities listed (in that listing) are very, very similar to what the 

Urbana project is.” 

Mr. Fields commented, “I have no questions—you explained everything—it’s 

something that the city needs to do!” 

Mr. Evans stated, “Our jobs in the city (in dealing with our city) are basic—to 

sustain human life, we have to be able to provide our citizens with drinkable 

water…we have to provide for Fire / Police (for public safety)…and operating 

a sewage treatment plant goes to more than just being able to handle 

production…it goes to basic health. We need to be able to operate that sewer 

treatment plant. If we fail to do that, we become a city that…you see on t.v. where 

people have waste rolling down their streams…so I don’t want to be an alarmist, 



 

 

and say that we’re at that point…but it is our responsibility as a city to deliver that 

service of sewage treatment…and that will ensure the health and safety of our 

community…so I urge Council to approve this…” 

(*Mr. Robert Thorpe appeared in the audience) 

Mr. Paul said, “When we first talked—the current capacity of the WWTP right 

now is about three million gallons.” 

“That is our average daily flow,” confirmed Mr. Hall. 

“To put this new plant in—you’re basically talking about a capacity to triple that 

(about nine million)—did I hear that right?” asked Mr. Paul. 

“That is on the peak side—there’s two different sides to…when we talk about 

hydraulic flows…average daily flow is what we would say average amount that      

comes in daily…we placed us at three million, we’re running between 2.5 and 

2.6…the heavy rain events—that’s where we start looking at that peak,” Mr. Hall 

said. 

“So five million average daily, then nine peak—okay,” said Mr. Paul. “You’re 

talking about some new technology and things updated / capacity—is there 

anything that we’re currently grandfathered for, as far as numbers of solids or 

chemicals, or anything like that?” 

Mr. Hall replied, “No—there’s nothing that I can think of.” 

Mr. Lokai stated: 

“Probably 3 words best describe what I’m going to say—the word ‘vision,’ the 

word ‘progress,’ and the word ‘growth’…that what this projects going to look like 

through time, and we’ve looked at other cities…and what’s happened in other 

cities…they cut corners, and they have some regular problems…and if we’re ever 

going to grow in this town…what’s happened unfortunately in the past is we kind 

of sort sighted ourselves a little bit. If we ever get a 4 or 5 inch rain under the 

current system, we’re going to have problems!” 

Mr. Lokai commended Mr. Hall for his work on this project, and also pointed out 

that taxpayers will have to look forward to a slight increase…but also, better 

service. He said this may be the biggest project the City of Urbana has ever 

undertaken. 

Mr. Hoffman said, “Al hit the nail on the head—we have an obligation to provide 

essential services--is one of our primary functions, so obviously we have to get a 

plant for that reason…as well as the regulations that are going to be changing as 

far as discharge limits. I guess the nice benefit of this is—we’re going to be able 

to attract many more outside opportunities as far as manufacturing / food & 

beverage…so we’ve got a great water supply…this is a great water treatment 

potential, so hopefully we can attract some large facilities to town. Any help I can 

be to you, Chad, along the way—don’t hesitate to call!” 

7. Mr. Paul moved to authorize a purchase order and subsequent change order to  

A&B Asphalt Corp. in the amount of $15,837. for additional costs to repair 

portions of East Church St. through the city’s 2013 Asphalt Paving Program (This 

Expense will be charged to the Capital Improvement Fund, and is in the 2013 

Budget); Mr. Fields seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

(This Board of Control Item was brought into the Meeting) 

Discussion – 



 

 

Mr. Crabill explained: 

“If you recall—we were planning on doing the Phase 1 Water Main Replacement 

on Church, Court, and Ward. Today—the street paving list was published, and we 

received many calls…why is Church St. not on the list, and the answer was (you 

know) we do plan on tearing it up…but because of the condition of the street 

currently, and the fact that it would be (at least) another year before we start on 

the water line project…we’ve decided to bring forward a proposal to add to our 

existing contract…paving, additional paving on East Church. This is not a 

complete redo of the street or anything like this…this is just to pick the worst 

sections…mill them down /put back asphalt, and try to buy the streets some time 

until it ultimately gets torn up again in a couple years. There are just a couple 

sections that have deteriorated so badly that…this is probably the best option to 

buy us some time, and respond to some of those concerns in the neighborhood.” 

(At this point—7:40PM—Mr. Thorpe left the room) 

Mr. Paul asked, “When was water system supposed to be started?” 

Mr. Crabill replied, “At the earliest—it would be May of next year, so we have to 

get the street through another Winter (for sure)…and then once the work starts, 

then you’re talking about a street that’s basically torn up indefinitely for an 

extended period of time…and then when it’s all finished, everything gets cleaned 

up and resurfaced…and put back.” 

Mr. Crabill projected two and a half to three years before that final coat of asphalt 

would be put down. 

“We just felt we had to buy some time,” said Mr. Crabill. 

Mr. Hoffman thanked Mr. Crabill for the clarification, and noted he has received a 

lot of calls regarding. 

Mr. Crabill also noted receiving calls, and said, “The concern is out there.” 

Council President Hess stated, “$15,000—it says it’s in the Budget, but I didn’t 

think we had any extra money for paving…Lee?” 

“We have Capital Improvement Funds remaining that allow us to fund the 

additional,” Mr. Crabill said. 

“That is correct,” Mr. Lee Williams confirmed. 

Mr. Evans asked, “So if I go to my neighbors and have them call—we can get our 

street paved as well?”  

Mr. Kerry Brugger said, “I guess the question that’s come up is—this has been on 

the table for probably a year and a half…and it’s been delayed…we thought we 

were going to do the water last year…well…let’s not tear it up if we’re going to 

do the water…then we were going to do it this year…now we’re going to do it 

next year. The bottom line is this—the decision ultimately is—do we want to 

spend the money, or not? So—we’re asking—we’ve the money in the budget, we 

can make it happen…” 

He referred to the work of Mr. Tyler Bumbalough to review the situation. 

“This is really just a stop gap—to buy us more time (like Doug said), to get us 

through the next Winter…and get us into the next season,” said Mr. Brugger. 

“We’re asking for authorization to move forward. We’re telling you we’d like to 

try to make this thing work. If you’re telling us, ‘We’re not going to spend the 

money’—we understand. The ball’s in your court.” 



 

 

Mrs. Smith affirmed the condition of that street is really bad, and cited numbers of 

potholes. 

“We’re trying to address the areas that are nothing but cold patch…and that’s all 

that’s left,” Mr. Crabill interjected. 

Mr. Brugger added, “I’m sure (if we move forward)—if we stop somewhere, 

there’s going to be somebody that says, ‘You should’ve gone 3 more feet!’ We’re 

trying to do something in the interim area that’s going to work.” 

“The program is set to roll next week—that’s why it’s here,” said Mr. Crabill. 

“It’s a change order to the current contract—they’re working across the street this 

week—they’re going to start the street paving next week,” Mr. Brugger said. “We 

couldn’t come back at the next meeting—it would be too late!” 

Mr. Lokai joked that those who repair shocks and struts will not be happy. 

“So what do we tell the rest of the city?” asked Mr. Evans. “When those folks call 

in and say, ‘You did this for one part of the city, can you do it for my part?’” 

“…and we’ve fielded those already,” Mr. Brugger answered. “A couple of them 

in particular that we’re just not able to do them at this point. I guess it’s just 

like…sometimes you just have to stand your ground.” 

“Is it like—winning the lottery?” asked Mr. Evans. 

“Well—I don’t think it’s that,” said Mr. Brugger. 

“I think it’s fair to say that this is one of the worst streets in town,” Mr. Crabill 

said. “We struggled with that when we put the program in. I think the people have 

spoken that we need to do something as a stop gap.” 

“I had to ask—I didn’t know we had the extra money—I’m glad we did,” said 

Council President Hess. 

“There’s money in the Capital—it’s just a matter of how you define the buckets,” 

stated Mr. Brugger. “Rob Peter to pay Paul.” 

“How many of the streets that are in town, are comparable to them?” asked Mr. 

Fields. 

“It’s got to be one of the worst…I mean they…” Mr. Crabill began. 

“My street’s pretty bad,” said Mr. Fields. 

“That’s being looked at—I believe,” Mr. Crabill said. 

“Well, it’s all relevant—what street do you live on?” asked Mr. Evans. 

(To laughter) Mr. Fields replied, “I live on Walnut.” 

“High Street is being looked at—the drainage issue,” added Mr. Crabill. 

“As long as we don’t get any phone calls that say, ‘Well, they just blacktopped 

the street and now they’re tearing it up’…because that’s what they always say,” 

said Council President Hess. 

“Oh—we’ll get ‘em,” said Mr. Brugger. 

“Many of the calls today were not aware their water line was going to be torn up,” 

said Mr. Crabill. “The water main…so.” 

“But—on a good note—they fixed the water main on Water St.,” said Mr. Fields. 

Citizen Comments 

Mr. Ben Vollrath (DP&L) explained briefly why the DP&L reps did not come to 

this Meeting. 

Ordinances and Resolutions 

Third Reading – 



 

 

There were no Third Readings. 

Second Reading – 

There were no Second Readings. 

First Reading – 

RESOLUTION NO. 2393 – 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF URBANA TO ENTER A 

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF ESTABLISHING A DOG PARK 

Mr. Lokai moved to place RESOLUTION NO. 2393 on the business floor for 

discussion and passage; Mr. Paul seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger explained the interest of the ‘Citizens for Canines Group’ of putting 

in a Dog Park, and outlined the specific planned location (adjacent to the City 

Pool). 

“This is strictly a Resolution authorizing us to move forward with that program,” 

he said. 

Law Director/Attorney Gil Weithman also addressed Council adding that 

additional fencing will adjoin existing fencing. Water lines and benches will also 

be available. 

“We have all the money that we need to do it—we’re not asking for any money at 

all,” Attorney Weithman said, noting that Assistant to the Law Director, Ms. 

Breanne Parcels drew up the proposal. “Our hope would be to start June 1
st
, and 

do this very quickly.” 

Mr. Lokai asked whether passage of this Resolution was requested at this 

Meeting. 

Attorney Weithman said it was the desire of the group to move forward, and 

further elaborated on grass mowing and rules/regulations that will be part of the 

equation. 

Mr. Evans said, “This is no different than any other type of agreement that we 

have with other entities….” 

The projected opening of the dog park was noted as July. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4394 – 

AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES BY 

ADOPTING CURRENT REPLACEMENT PAGES 

Mr. Lokai moved to suspend the rules on three readings (at the request of the 

Council Clerk, who said the Ordinance had been advertised 7 days prior as 

required); Mr. Paul seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve suspension: Mr. Evans, yes; Mr. Paul, yes; Mrs. Smith, 

yes; Mr. Lokai, yes; Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes  (6-0) 

Mr. Lokai moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4394 on the business floor for 

discussion and passage; Mr. Evans seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve passage: Mr. Paul, yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. Lokai, yes; 

Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, yes  (6-0) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger explained that the Administration has been working with the Walter 



 

 

Drane Co. to move forward in having all of the Ordinances (in the future) posted 

on their website with a city link. It will be a searchable database, and will 

eliminate the City to ‘continually use paper.’ Mr. Brugger said the City of Urbana 

will join some 200 cities that already utilize the service, and thus will eliminate 

‘the big green books.’ There will be a one time fee to set up, and a $30. per month 

fee to maintain the service. 

“This will be a nice way to search for—what you need,” he said. 

Mr. Evans noted that last year he disagreed with doing away with the green 

books, but asked the Clerk to remove his name from the pages receiving list. He 

said he has since become savvy with using the computer to do searches. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4395 – 

ORDINANCE OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF URBANA APPROVING A 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

URBANA, OHIO, AND THE CITY OF URBANA PATROL OFFICERS AND 

THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE / OHIO LABOR COUNCIL 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger explained the particulars of the agreement, citing the summary 

provided by Ms. Chris Boettcher. Mr. Brugger noted the addition of a physical 

fitness clause. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4396 – 

ORDINANCE OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF URBANA APPROVING A 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

URBANA, OHIO, AND THE CITY OF URBANA POLICE SERGEANTS AND 

THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE / OHIO LABOR COUNCIL 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger outlined this agreement. Mr. Hoffman questioned whether there is a 

physical fitness incentive clause in this agreement. 

“They didn’t get that negotiated in,” Mr. Brugger replied. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4397 – 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND BENEFITS FOR 

THE FIRE CHIEF OF THE CITY OF URBANA 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger briefly defined this agreement, and emphasized that updates are 

being made by Ms. Boettcher to ensure proper titles are included. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4398 – 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND BENEFITS FOR 

THE ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF OF THE CITY OF URBANA 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Brugger briefly defined this agreement. No Council questions/comments. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4399 – 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND BENEFITS FOR 

THE CENTRAL STAFF EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF URBANA 



 

 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Mr. Brugger outlined this agreement, noting ‘this Ordinance has not been updated 

in awhile.’ He referred to the highlighted email sent to Council by Ms. Boettcher, 

pointing to changes/clarifications. 

Miscellaneous Business 

Mr. Fields       - (To Mr. Crabill) “Doug—in the last Council Meeting we ap- 

                           proved funding for the paving in the 100 block of High St…” 

                           Mr. Crabill said, “We haven’t heard the day—they were sup- 

                           posed to call us this week to tell us when they’d be here. We 

                           haven’t heard from them yet. Sometime this week.” 

                           Asked about whether any clean up will be done west of The 

                           Square (reference to bike people/bike activity) 

                           “There’s a regular meeting going on in the organization group, 

                           so you’re going to see a lot of activity here as you get closer to 

                           it…to follow the path, street closure, things like that,” said Mr. 

                           Brugger. 

                           Mr. Fields made reference to clean up of graffiti near The Depot 

                           Mr. Brugger replied, “We’re trying to stay ahead of that too…we 

                           just can’t seem to stay ahead of the artist!” 

Mr. Evans       -  Nothing at this time 

Mr. Paul          -  Asked Mr. Fields whether volunteers are needed for the bike 

                           activity; Mr. Fields said, “Boy Scouts or somebody like that.” 

Mr. Paul moved to excuse Councilman Robert Thorpe from this Meeting; Mr. 

Fields seconded. All were in favor of excusing Mr. Thorpe. 

Council President Hess mentioned a meeting at the Fairgrounds (4:30PM) on 

Wednesday, May 15
th

 regarding the Bike Activity. 

Mrs. Smith      -  Asked, “Fusion—when they come into Urbana, and they open  

                            up, I’m sure they had to get a permit to be able to drink out- 

                            side on the sidewalk?” 

                            “It has to be within the fenced area,” said Mr. Crabill. “Inside  

                            the fence.” 

                            Mr. Paul asked jokingly, “Did YOU go outside the fence?” 

Mr. Lokai         -  Discussed a procedural topic regarding the numbers of times  

                             there has been request for a suspension of the rule on three  

                             readings 

                             He said, “There’s a reason for that, and when you’re suspend- 

                             ing the rules (or you’re suspending a rule) in this particular case 

the rule we’re suspending is the three readings…and if it’s something that’s 

ceremonial, that’s a Resolution…and if it’s something that’s an Ordinance, then 

there will be three readings. My question or concern is—if we’re going to ask to 

suspend the rule…as a courtesy, whichever person on the Administrative team or 

person that is the Superintendent that…once that rule is suspended then…I think 

it would really help Council if we were notified in advance that you would like to 

suspend the rule, as opposed to coming to the meeting to say, ‘Now we would like 

to suspend.’ The second part of that is (and maybe I’m the only one that feels this 

way)—WHY are we going to suspend the rule? Now I can see this one on 



 

 

Codified Ordinances tonight—that was a legitimate reason—but I think just as a 

simple professional courtesy to Council—it would be nice to know why you want 

to suspend the rule…and I understand sometimes deadlines come in, but also the 

questions that I get asked are…are we trying to rush something through. 

I can go back to one that really stung us bad (in 2005, when we had three readings 

in three days), and the purpose for this ability of suspending the rule is for maybe 

emergency purposes…but if we just do 2 things (and I don’t want to be picking 

on the Administration, this is a courtesy thing)…if you want to suspend the rule, 

if you could just give it to Gail…and the second part of that, someone up there 

explaining…or hear why we need to suspend the rule.” 

Mr. Hoffman            - (To Mr. Chris Stokes) Asked what can be done about 

                                   ‘tee-ballers tinkling on the trees,’ and asked Mr. Stokes to 

                                    define the number of outhouses and management thereof 

                                    Mr. Stokes provided an update on available restrooms and 

                                    port-a-johns, also citing problems with vandalism 

Mr. Stokes                - Announced the Urbana Youth Sports Festival planned for 

                                    July 12-13, to raise funds 

Activities will include a ‘Concert in the Park,’ Fishing Derby, Police/Safety Town 

Bike Rodeo, a Tennis Tournament, Youth Baseball/Softball Tournament, an 

Adult Softball Tournament, ODNR Archery for Kids & Boat Safety, Vendors, 

Swim Team 5K Run, Fire Dept. Water Games, Punt-Pass-& Kick, RC Racing 

He noted more information will become available on flyers, and in news releases 

Mr. Hoffman asked who to contact for more information 

Mr. Stokes said to check the link on the Urbana Youth Sports website. City of 

Urbana website, or contact Cheryl Wade/Todd Tracey/Mr. Stokes 

Mrs. Smith said, “You can always call your Council person.” 

He mentioned a $7,500 grant to put sand in the volleyball court, and also 

discussed the refurbishing of the old horseshoe pits 

Police Chief Matt Lingrell – 

                                    Nothing at this time 

Mr. Crabill                - Nothing at this time 

Mr. Robert Munch    - Nothing at this time 

Mr. Chad Hall           - Nothing at this time 

Council President Hess said, “Chad, we appreciate all the work you’re doing!” 

Mr. Lee Williams      - Noted the Tax Budget is coming July 20
th

 (the Tax Budget  

                                     is due to the County Budget Commission); Said Council 

                                     can expect to see this the first meeting in June 

                                     “We are approximately 30% /40% complete with that Tax 

Budget. The Finance Department will finish it at the end of the month, and we’ll 

have it ready for a First Reading in June,” said Mr. Williams. “If you remember—

the Tax Budget…the new beast is the revenue stream that defines next years’ 

revenue for us…and it will be ready for a First Reading in June.” 

Mr. Brugger               - Mentioned again the ‘Citizens for Canine,’ and invited 

                                     citizens to get involved with groups and events to make 

                                     things happen 

                                     Recognized the Four Seasons Garden Club for cleaning up 



 

 

                                       Monument Square (the circle area) 

                                       Thanked Police Officer Steve Molton & the Boy Scout 

                                       Troops for changing out the flag on The Monument, and 

                                       for cleaning out Dugan Ditch (between No. Main & Rus- 

                                       sell St.) 

Announced Monday, May 27, 2013 (at 7:PM) at Freedom Grove, there will be 

another ‘Flag Retirement Ceremony’; Invited citizens to drop off flags to be 

retired at the Municipal Building (Police Dept.); Noted the ceremony as 

impressive, and invited all to attend 

Announced the Moving Ohio Forward Program will begin title searches on 

properties identified  

Mayor Bill Bean          - Thanked Council for their support of the WWTP 

                                       “As Mr. Lokai said, this is important—it’s for the growth  

                                       of the city,” he said. “I’m glad all of you are on-board 

                                       with it.” 

                                       Mentioned May 4
th

 was opening day out at the Park, and 

                                       noted it as a successful event; Officer Stanley attended 

                                       Announced, “GOBA’s going to be here on June 15
th

— 

Tomorrow we’ve got a walk through with the people from GOBA—starting out at 

the Fairgrounds…seeing everything that’s going to be happening out there, and 

then we’re going to come down.” 

Said he will reveal the schedule at a later time; Noted entertainment (Mule 

Skinners, etc.); Said (past) Governor Taft will attend the activity 

Council President Hess –Piggybacked on Mr. Brugger’s remarks inviting citizens 

                                       to get involved with activities/events, and asked citizens 

                                       to share ideas with their Council Members 

                                       Said with the Dog Park idea was led by citizen input and 

                                       effort 

 

Adjournment 

Mr. Lokai moved to adjourn the UCC Regular Session Meeting; Mr. Paul 

seconded. All were in favor of adjournment at 8:23PM. 

 

 

______________________________    ______________________________ 
Council Clerk                                                             Council President 

 

May 14, 2013 Minutes.doc                       Urbana City Council                                            Page 13 of 13 

   

 

 

                            

     

    

  

 

 


